

# How to Become a Participating Employer Under the Wisconsin Retirement System



### **Table of Contents**

General Information	1
Definition of Public Entity	2
Employers with Mandatory Participation	2
Voluntary Participation	2
What is the Governing Body	3
Action by School Districts	3
Effective Date of Participation	3
Resolution of Inclusion and Certification	3
Resolution is Irrevocable	3
Agent of Participating Employer	3
Send Materials and/or Questions to:	4
Administration	4
Employee Eligibility Criteria for WRS Participation	4
Employer Cannot Limit Employee Participation	5
Activities Prior to Effective Date	5
Employee/Employer Contribution Rates	5
Employer Payment of Employee Contributions	5
Employer Payments	5
Other Employer Retirement Costs	6
Cost Study for Prior Service Participation	7
Frequently Asked Questions	8
Social Security Coverage	9
Group Life Insurance	9
Group Health Insurance	9
Income Continuation Insurance	9
Sample Resolution of Inclusion Under the WRS	11
Sample Designation of Agent	13
Resolution of Inclusion Under the WRS	15
Designation of Agent	17
Prior Service of Cost Study Employee Eligible for WRS	19
Contact ETFBack Co	over

### **General Information**

If you are a local public employer in Wisconsin not currently participating in the Wisconsin Retirement System, this booklet includes information to help you understand the WRS and assist in your decision whether to join. If you decide to join the WRS, please follow the procedures outlined in this booklet.

The WRS is administered by the Department of Employee Trust Funds and provides retirement, disability and death benefits, various insurance programs, and a deferred compensation program to employees of the state of Wisconsin, school districts, and participating local governments. For a description of employee benefits, refer to <a href="Your Benefit Handbook">Your Benefit Handbook</a> (ET-2119), which is included in the materials sent to prospective WRS employers.

**Note:** To be eligible to join the group health insurance program, employers must be enrolled in the WRS and be covered by a Section 218 agreement with the Social Security Administration.

All state agencies, including the University of Wisconsin System, participate in the WRS. Approximately 1,445 local units of government currently participate, with new members joining each year. School districts cover their teachers in the WRS and many cover their non-teaching staff as well. This means that about 90% of public employees in Wisconsin are covered by the WRS.

If you have questions regarding WRS participation, please mail them to the Division of Retirement Services, P.O. Box 7931, Madison, WI 53707-7931, or call the Employer Communication Center toll-free at 1-877-533-5020 or 608-266-3285.

Your elected officials and employees are also urged to attend a public meeting on WRS benefits. Statewide presentations are scheduled every spring and fall. Presentation dates and locations are on the ETF website at etf.wi.gov or you may call ETF Monday through Friday, between 7:45 a.m. 4:30 p.m., toll free at 1-877-533-5020 or 608-266-3285. Visit the ETF Internet site at <a href="etf.wi.gov">etf.wi.gov</a> for online WRS presentations and related benefit programs information.

The WRS is a non-profit public trust. Contributions made to the WRS by participating employers and employees, together with the income from the investment of these contributions, can be used only for the purpose of paying benefits as established by law and for associated administrative costs. The administrative costs are paid from the investment earnings of WRS assets.

The WRS is controlled by the ETF Board, whose members represent the interests of the employer, employee and general public [Wis. Stat. § 15.16 (1)]. The investment program of the WRS is handled by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board, which is directed and staffed by highly qualified professional investment personnel.

The Wisconsin Legislative Audit Bureau regularly audits the WRS. The actuarial soundness of the WRS is assured by the continuous employment of an independent consulting actuary who advises the Employee Trust Funds Board on all technical operations of the WRS, funding requirements and contribution rates. An actuarial valuation of the operating experience of the WRS based on previously established assumptions is conducted not less than once every three years.

Participation in the WRS is open to any public employer [Wis. Stat. § 40.02 (28)]. Participating public employers include: joint police commissions, housing authorities, cooperative education service agencies, joint health departments, sanitary districts, regional planning commissions and library systems.

"Employer" means the state, including each state agency, any county, city, village, town, school district, other governmental unit or instrumentality of two or more units of government now existing or hereafter created within the state, any federated public library system established under s. 43.19 whose territory lies within a single county with a population of 500,000 or more, a local exposition district created under subchapter II of chapter 229, and a long-term care district created under s. 46.2895, except as provided under ss. 40.51 (7) and 40.61 (3).

### **Definition of Public Entity**

Sometimes there may be difficulty determining public agency status as a political subdivision of the state for purposes of providing coverage under the Social Security program. The Wisconsin Statutes and Social Security Administration control in making this determination.

Provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes such as Chapter 60 for towns and Chapter 66 for cities and villages, etc. must apply in a way which would allow the agency to be determined by ETF and the Social Security Administration as eligible for inclusion in the State Federal Section 218 Agreement.

Some of the factors that help evaluate the agency status as a public employer are listed below. Agencies considering joining the WRS are encouraged to submit well before November 15 every year, sufficient documentation of their powers and duties.

- The entity or entities which created the new entity must have the power to do so under Wisconsin Statutes. The new entity must provide documentation to ETF which shows that it was created in accordance with applicable provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes.
- The entity must be an independent legal entity.
   The following powers are characteristic of an independent legal entity:
  - a. To levy taxes.
  - b. To borrow money and to issue bonds.
  - c. To hold and to convey real and personal property
  - d. To sue and to be sued in its own name.
  - e. To enter into contracts.
     To hire, to supervise, and to discharge its own employees.
- The entity must perform a governmental function. Examples of governmental functions are: police and fire protection, education, sanitation and flood control.

# **Employers with Mandatory Participation**

Participation in the WRS is optional for most public employers, but the following public employers **must** participate:

Every county (except Milwaukee), for all eligible personnel.

Villages and cities as follows:

- Villages with a population of 5,000 or more must continue to cover present and future police officers if the village was mandated to include them in the WRS prior to March 31, 1978, (Wis. Stat. § 61.65 (6) 1975, repealed by Wis. Stat. § 40.21 (4), Chapter 96, Laws of 1981).
- 2. Villages with a population of 5,500 or more must continue to cover present and future police officers and firefighters if the village was mandated to include them in the WRS prior to March 31, 1978, (Wis. Stat. § 61.65 (7) 1975, repealed by Wis Stat. § 40.21 (4), Chapter 96, Laws of 1981).
- 3. Second-, third- and fourth-class **cities must continue** to cover police officers and firefighters (except volunteer firefighters) if the city was mandated to include them in the WRS prior to March 31, 1978, (Wis. Stat. § 62.13 (9) (e), (9a), (10) (f) and (g), 1975, repealed by Wis. Stat. § 40.21 (4), Chapter 96, Laws of 1981).

These employers may also elect to cover their non-protective personnel.

 All school districts must cover their teaching personnel. They may also elect to cover non-teaching personnel (educational support personnel).

A newly created **school district** must cover its non-teaching personnel if its territory includes more than one half of the last assessed valuation of a school district which covered its non-teaching personnel under the WRS at the time the new district was created.

### **Voluntary Participation**

Participation in the WRS is voluntary for employers other than those mandated and requires the adoption of a resolution of inclusion by the governing body. (Refer to the sample resolution on page 11.)

### What is the Governing Body?

The governing body is that entity empowered to act for all subordinate departments, divisions, branches, boards and commissions [Wis. Stat. § 40.02 (36)]. The governing body is the school board in an independent school district, the town board in a town, the village board in a village, the common council in a city, the county board in a county, or the board, commission or other governing body having the final authority for any other unit of government or for any agency or instrumentality of two or more units of government.

### **Action by School Districts**

School districts should be especially cautious of the following when formulating a resolution for participation in the WRS:

Use the term "school board" to identify the governing body, rather than the "board of education" because our office does not recognize the board of education as the governing body.

Identify the school district by giving the **complete legal title** in both the resolution and certification. The legal title will include the words "school district" and the number of the district, if any.

### **Effective Date of Participation**

Participation in the WRS is effective only on January 1 of the year. Due to the processing time required to establish the necessary accounts for each employer, the required resolution and associated documentation must be received at ETF no later than November 15 of the year preceding the January 1 on which participation becomes effective [Wis. Admin. Code ETF 20.017].

### Resolution of Inclusion and Certification

The resolution of inclusion adopted by the governing body **should be completed on the blank form provided** on Page 13 of this booklet. Include on the resolution the percent of *prior service* to be granted if the employer is resolving to participate in the WRS for all of their current employees who meet the WRS eligibility criteria on the effective date. For additional information on prior service credits, refer to Employer Retirement Costs, Item 4. on Page 8.

Wis. Stat. 40.21 (7), effective March 2, 2016, was created to allow employers to file a resolution of inclusion in the WRS for employees hired on or after the resolution effective date only; prior service credit is not an option in this case. Under this subsection, employers can also make a one-time offer to current eligible employees to elect or waive participation in the WRS from the effective date of the resolution

forward; the employer can resolve to provide prior service for these employees. The form, *Waiver/ Election of Participation in the WRS* (ER-2300), used to make this one-time offer can be found on page 21 of this booklet.

The employer is required to certify the resolution of inclusion [Wis. Stat. 40.21 (6)]. The certification is official verification of the governing body's action to participate. The certification must be signed by the agency's recording officer.

### Resolution is Irrevocable

If the official notice of election to be included is received on or before November 15, the effective date of participation of the employer shall be the ensuing January 1. If the notice of election is received after November 15, the effective date shall be the January 1 after the ensuing January 1. The employer may withdraw a notice of election to be included if the employer's written notice to withdraw is received by the department before the November 15 deadline of the year before the January effective date.

There is a continuing obligation for any financial liabilities incurred and unpaid even though the status of a public agency may change as a result of dissolution or other actions.

### **Agent of Participating Employer**

The responsibility for transacting business between the public employer and ETF must be entrusted to an individual or individuals appointed by the governing body. It is recommended that the person actually responsible for all matters pertaining to the WRS and other programs administered by ETF be designated as the agent.

Usually the person designated as agent for Social Security is the same position responsible for transacting business for the WRS. The <u>Designation of Agent (ET-1313)</u> form should be submitted to ETF with the <u>Resolution of Inclusion Under WRS (ET-1319)</u> [Wis. Stat. § 40.03 (2) (j)]. Refer to page 17 for the form to use for this purpose.

Designating an agent does not deprive the governing body of its control in WRS-related matters. The governing body can advise the agent (preferably in writing) of matters for which the agent must consult the governing body before making certification to ETF. The governing body is ultimately responsible for the actions of its designated WRS agent.

An alternate agent should be designated, whenever possible, to perform the duties of the agent whenever the designated agent is unable to perform the required duties.

### Send Materials and/or Questions to:

Department of Employee Trust Funds Division of Retirement Services P.O. Box 7931

Madison, WI 53707-7931

Phone: 1-877-533-5020 (toll-free) or 608-266-3285 (local Madison)

### Administration

Upon receipt of the *Resolution of Inclusion Under WRS (ET-1319)* form, an employer will be directed to the *WRS Employer Administration Manual* (ET-1127) on the ETF website for assistance administering the WRS. ETF staff will provide training on the WRS administration upon request. Additional information concerning specific provisions of the WRS may be obtained by consulting Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes, and the retirement rules published as Wis. Admin. Code § ETF.

# **Employee Eligibility Criteria for WRS Participation**

Employers who join the WRS are responsible for evaluating each employee's eligibility for participation.

Anyone who potentially could be covered by the WRS, as defined by the option chosen on the *Resolution of Inclusion Under WRS (ET-1319)* form, and receives earnings for personal services rendered must be evaluated for WRS eligibility. **This evaluation must include individuals who are hired as seasonal, project, temporary and/or part-time employees, members of all boards and commissions, and elected officials.** All employees who meet the following criteria as listed in Wis. Stat. § 40.22 must be enrolled in the WRS, or offered the Waiver/Election of Participation in the WRS (ET-2300) form if that option is selected by the employer via the resolution:

 Employees covered under a WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011 are expected to work one-third of full-time per year (440 hours for teachers and educational support staff and 600 hours for all others). Employees covered under a WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011 are expected to work two-thirds of full-time per year (880 hours for teachers and educational support staff, and 1,200 hours for all others).

### **AND**

2. Employees are expected to be employed at least one year (365 consecutive days, 366 in leap year) from date of hire. Note that if an employee is expected to work nine or 10 months per year but is expected to return year after year, the one-year requirement is considered met.

Keep in mind the following points on WRS eligibility:

- If employees meet the eligibility criteria, they
  must be enrolled in WRS. (Employees have
  no choice, except in instances where the
  employer files a resolution to participate in the
  WRS for new employees only, and exercises
  their statutory right to provide a one-time offer
  to participate to employees hired prior to that
  resolutions's effective date.)
- Employees who do not meet the criteria may not be enrolled in WRS nor should they be provided the Waiver/Election of Participation in the WRS (ET-2300) if the employer has chosen that option on the <u>Resolution of Inclusion Under</u> <u>WRS (ET-1319)</u> form. The employer must assess the reasonable number of hours necessary to perform the duties.

### Example:

A part-time bus driver is hired by a school district to drive morning and afternoon routes for the 2017/2018 school year. The employee was covered under another WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011, so would be grandfathered by the 440-hour eligibility criteria.

The employer estimates each route will take one and one half hours to complete for a total of three hours each day. The driver is also required to inspect, clean, fuel, etc. the bus each morning and afternoon. The employer estimates this will take 15 minutes in the morning and 15 minutes in the afternoon for a total of 30 minutes each day.

There are 180 days in the school year. 180 days x 3.5 hours/1 day = 630 hours per school year. The bus driver meets the 440 hour for 12-month expectation to qualify for WRS when hired.

**Note:** The employee in this scenario who was *not* covered by a WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011 would have to be expected to work 880 hours in a 12-month period to be WRS eligible.

- All eligible employment for which an employee receives earnings for personal services rendered for the employer must be included when determining WRS eligibility.
- Employment for which an amount is paid to the employee by the employer—regardless of the source of funding (e.g., grants) and whether reimbursement for earnings is made by a second employing entity—must be included in the evaluation of WRS eligibility.
- The WRS eligibility criteria must be met independently at each employer.

# **Employer Cannot Limit Employee Participation**

WRS participation may not be limited to a particular department, a classification of employees, special interest groups or union contract groups, nor may it be limited to only full-time employees. There is no qualifying period. The only exception is for employers who file a resolution to participate in the WRS for employees hired on or after the effective date of the resolution, provide a one-time offer of participation to current eligible employees, or exclude their public utility workers from participation per Wis. Stat. § 40.21 (7).

Employees not expected to meet the WRS eligibility criteria upon hire, or those not eligible for the one-time option via the *Waiver/Election of Participation in the WRS (ET-2300)* form, may become eligible at a later time as detailed in Chapter 3 of the *WRS Employer Administration Manual* (ET-1127).

When a resolution is adopted, all eligible employees must be enrolled effective the ensuing January 1.

### **Activities Prior to Effective Date**

On or about November 20 of the year prior to the January 1 WRS effective date, each new employer, including employers who elect 0% prior service, will receive, depending on the WRS resolution option chosen:

Certification of Prior Service and Salary Record
(ET-2315) forms, and instructions for their
completion. A Certification of Prior Service and
Salary Record must be completed for each
eligible employee. The employee's complete
employment record from the date of hire,
including hours of service per year and the
employment category is required.

**Note:** This form will not be required when an employer files a resolution to participate in the WRS limited to employees hired on or after the effective date of the resolution.

- Waiver/Election of Participation in the WRS
   (ET-2300) forms, if the employer resolved to
   come under the WRS for new hires only, with a
   one-time offer of participation for current, eligible
   employees.
- Election to Participate in the Variable Trust Fund (ET-2356), and the instructions for completion of this form. Provide an election form to each employee being enrolled in the WRS.
- Instructions on how to online enroll WRS-eligible employees hired on or after, or who will become WRS eligible on or after, January 1.

### **Employee/Employer Contribution Rates**

The WRS is considered a contributory retirement plan to which both the employee and employer make contributions. WRS contribution rates are reviewed annually and may change based on actuarial assumptions and recommendations.

The following are the rates established by statute and the Employee Trust Funds Board for each employment category for the upcoming calendar year. ETF typically announces the WRS contribution rates for the upcoming year in June. Current rates are published in the *Employer Bulletin* or can be found at <a href="ett-wi.gov">ett-wi.gov</a> under WRS Contribution Rate History.

The employee-required contribution rates are specified by statute [Wis. Stat. § 40.05 (1) (a)] and must be paid by the employee [Wis. Stat. § 40.05 (1) (b). The percentage is applied to the gross earnings of the employee each pay period to determine the dollar amount of the employee's retirement contribution.

# **Employer Payment of Employee Contributions**

Wisconsin Act 10 (effective June 29, 2011) mandates that employers may not pay, on behalf of a participating employee, the employee-required portion of their respective WRS contribution rate unless the employee is under a collective bargaining agreement that was effective prior to June 29, 2011.

### **Employer Payments**

An employer is mandated to make all payments to ETF on the Online Network for Employers (ONE) site. Employers will need to complete the <u>Online Network for Employers Security Agreement (ET-8928)</u> and the <u>Automated Clearing House Direct Withdrawl Authorization (ET-1734)</u> when they are completing the Resolution to Join the WRS. Employers will be shown where this form is on the ETF's website.

### **Other Employer Retirement Costs**

The employer's WRS cost is categorized as either *prior service cost* or *current service cost*. The following sections describe each of these terms.

The employer contribution covering prior and current service are different for the various employment categories because the retirement benefits are different. In determining the employer contribution rates, the WRS consulting actuary takes into consideration such factors as reported earnings, assumed employee turnover, mortality experience and age.

### 1. Employer Duty Disability

Employers with protective category employees have a duty disability rate. The rate varies by the employer's claims experience and their relationship to payroll reported. Employers new to WRS would have no claims so the rate would fall into the lowest category. Depending on your groups claims payout, the 2016 duty disability rates categories are between .09% to 2.31%. This rate is reviewed annually and published in a June *Employer Bulletin*.

# 2. Employer Unfunded Accrued Liability (Prior Service) Cost

Employers who file a resolution to cover all their eligible employees may recognize 100%, 75%, 50%, 25% or 0% of the prior service credits earned by the employees while employed by the employer. [Wis. Stat. § 40.21 (6) (a)] An election to recognize prior service is irrevocable.

**Note:** There is no prior service credit available when an employer files a resolution to participate in the WRS for employees hired on or after the resolution's effective date.

The employer makes an election for a specific percent of prior service credit in the resolution of inclusion, for all service rendered **prior to the effective date** for every person who becomes a participating employee on the effective date of the employer's participation under the WRS. "Prior Service Credit" is, for example, an employee who has completed 20 years of service with the employer at the time the resolution of inclusion is adopted may receive credit—for retirement purposes—of 20 years (100% PS); 15 years (75% PS) 10 years (50% PS); 5 years (25% PS) or 0 years (0% PS).

Prior service credits are **only** available to employees who receive a formula benefit at the time of retirement. No contributions are credited to individual accounts for prior service. Only

current year service and contributions will be paid in a separation benefit.

The cost associated with prior service credit must be borne by the employer. Few employers would be in a position to pay the full prior service costs in a single sum at the time they begin to participate.

WRS law provides that prior service costs may be amortized over a period not to exceed 30 years. Amortization is accomplished by making a constant percent of payroll payments during each of 30 consecutive years.

An employer who uses the deferred payment method is charged the assumed rate per annum interest. The current assumed rate is 7.2%. An employer may pay the entire prior service liability initially, pay the remaining balance as of the end of any month, or make advance payments at any time. Paying the entire liability or making advance payments reduces the interest cost to the employer. Any employer interested in such arrangement should write to ETF for further information; otherwise the amortization method will be used.

The WRS can not accept rollovers from other qualified pension plans to purchase prior service.

# 3. School districts electing to cover educational support personnel

Please note that your existing teacher prior service rate, if any, may change after the election to begin coverage for educational support personnel employees. According to state statute, a weighted average rate will be computed and apply to both teachers and educational support personnel employees.

Employers wishing to know what the prior service cost will be **before** the adoption of a resolution to participate in the WRS must arrange for and pay the cost of the actuarial study. **This procedure is strongly recommended**. Refer to the Cost Study for Prior Service Participation section on the next page for instructions on obtaining an actuarial study.

Employers may adopt a WRS resolution with a prior service percent other than 0% without knowing in advance what the cost will be. In such cases, the required study will be arranged and paid for by the WRS. The employer is then **obligated** for all costs associated with the prior service liability.

4. Increasing Percent of Prior Service Credit
Employers initially electing 75% or less of
prior service credit may subsequently adopt a
resolution increasing the percentage in 25%
increments until 100% is reached. Every
employee who was a participating employee on
the effective date of the initial resolution and
who is still a participating employee on the
effective date of the subsequent resolution
will receive the increase. There is no retroactive
adjustment for individuals no longer employed by
the employer.

**Note:** Increasing the percentage of prior service credit will result in increased employer monthly contributions.

The employer should contact ETF requesting a <u>Resolution to Increase Prior Creditable Service</u> (ET-1311).

The Resolution to Increase Prior Creditable Service is effective January 1 and must be received by this office on or before November 15 of the preceding year.

# **Cost Study for Prior Service Participation**

Employers may submit a written request for an actuarial prior service cost study **before** filing a *Resolution of Inclusion Under WRS* (ET-1319). The results of the study will provide the employer with data to make an informed choice of 0%, 25%, 50%, 75% or 100% when filing its resolution.

Charge for an actuarial cost study is as follows:

- Employer with 10 or fewer employees, no resolution previously filed.....\$25
- Employer with 11 or more employees, no resolution previously filed.....\$50
- Employer with resolution on file.....\$-0-
- · Employer already participating in the WRS...\$-0-

To allow sufficient time to perform the cost study before the employer filing date, ETF asks that your written request for the study be made by October 1. Please include a check payable to ETF.

The following information must be supplied for each employee who is eligible for participation (refer to page 4 for eligibility criteria). A blank form is provided on page 17 of this booklet. Make copies as necessary.

- 1. Employer Name
- 2. ETF Employer Identification Number (This is the 69 036 XXXX XXX number used to report Social Security coverage.)
- 3. Employee Name (Last, First, MI)
- 4. Employee Social Security number (XXX-XX-XXXX)
- 5. Date of birth (MM/DD/CCYY)
- 6. Gender (F or M)
- 7. Date Employment Began—Enter the date of hire. If employment was interrupted, indicate each actual net period of employment.
- 8. Hours worked per year before year 2000—The number of hours worked per calendar year.)
- 9. Hours worked per year after year 1999—The number of hours worked per calendar year, starting with year 2000 to present.
- 10. Estimated Annual Earnings—This is the estimated earnings for the current calendar year. Present gross monthly rate of pay multiplied by 12.
- 11. Position Title—Designate which persons are police officers, firefighters, officials elected by the vote of the people or appointed to fill an unexpired elective office term, office workers, etc.

The Cost Report will be returned approximately four to six weeks after receipt of the above information.

# Frequently Asked Questions and Answers on Employer Unfunded Accrued Liability (Prior Service)

### What is Prior Service?

Employees who have worked for the employer before the effective date of WRS participation have prior service. By electing a percentage of prior service, the employer agrees to provide prior service credits to their employees and agrees to cover the actuarial determined cost of those credits. **An election to recognize prior service is irrevocable**.

# How does an employer elect prior service? The employer must file a <u>Resolution of Inclusion</u> <u>Under WRS (ET-1319)</u> by November 15 to be a participating employer on the following January 1.

On the resolution, the employer must specify a percentage of prior service. Employers may elect 100%, 75%, 50%, 25% or 0% coverage of prior service. For example, an employee who has completed 20 years of service with the employer will receive credit of 20 years with the 100% election, 15 years with the 75% election, 10 years with the 50% election, 5 years with the 25% election or 0 years with the 0% election.

**Note:** This does not apply to employers who file a resolution to participate in the WRS for employees hired on or after the effective date of the resolution only, per Wis. Stat. 40.21 (7).

# What does the election of prior service mean to my employees?

With the election of prior service, only service is credited to employee accounts. There are no dollar contributions credited. The crediting of prior service is of most value to the long-term employee after minimum retirement age. The employee who withdraws their money before minimum retirement age is not benefited by purchase of prior service. For more information on how service affects your benefit, please go to the ETF Internet site.

# Can employees use money invested in a previous plan to buy prior service?

No. The employer is responsible for the cost of prior service. Rollovers from other qualified pension plans or personal checks cannot be used to purchase prior service.

# How much will the election of prior service cost and how does an employer make payment?

The cost of prior service varies greatly from employer to employer. We strongly recommend having a prior service cost study done before filing an election. The data on your employees including age, service and salary are entered into actuarial software. An estimate of the cost is calculated. An employer has the option of making full payment or having the payments amortized. If the amortization method is chosen, a prior service rate is calculated. This rate is added to the employer rate component. Each month as you file the online WRS Contribution Remittance Entry, a payment is credited to the prior service balance. The prior service payment is calculated by earnings reported multiplied by the prior service rate component by employment category.

## Is there an interest charge on the prior service balance?

Yes, the assumed interest rate is charged on the remaining balance at the end of each calendar year. The current interest rate is 7.2%. All payments for a calendar year are subtracted from the beginning balance before interest is assessed.

### Can we accelerate our prior service payment?

Yes. Employers are allowed to make lump sum payments. Making optional payments reduces interest cost to the employer over the amortization period. After making payment in full, your prior service rate zeroes, reducing total rate on the online WRS Contribution Remittance Entry. Payoff of the prior service balance does not in any way affect the individual employee's account balance.

# If we elect prior service, can we decide to include only certain individuals or unions?

No. Every employee who is eligible for WRS participation is included in the prior service election regardless of union status.

# As a school district, our teachers are covered, but our educational support staff are not. Can we include them now?

Yes. Please note that your existing teacher prior service rate may change after the election to begin coverage for educational support personnel employees. A weighted average rate will be computed and apply to teachers and educational support personnel employees. We recommend you request a cost study done before you file your election.

# We filed an election at 0% a few years ago. Can we increase the percent?

Yes. Many employers elect 0% on the initial election and later wish to consider increasing the percentage. An employer may increase in increments of 25% until reaching 100%. All employees who were employed by

you and participating in WRS on the effective date of the initial resolution and are still participating on the date of the subsequent resolution will receive prior service. You will need to complete a Resolution to Increase Prior Service. This form must be received on or before November 15 to have an increase effective the following January 1. We strongly recommend that you request a cost study before filing an increased resolution. The new study will include only the original employees who are currently working for you. This study could vary from a previous year study as employees are now older, have increased salaries or may no longer be employed by you. **An election in increase prior service is irrevocable**.

### **Social Security Coverage**

Employers participating in the WRS are by state law included in the state-federal agreement for Social Security coverage for all positions eligible under the WRS (Wis. Stat. § 40.41 (4)) with a few exceptions.

Since the majority of political subdivisions in Wisconsin have acted to provide Social Security coverage for services performed by virtually all employees and officers, most public agencies joining the WRS will already have been included in the state-federal agreement for Social Security coverage.

Prior to July 1, 1991, only employees who were eligible for WRS received Social Security coverage. Although, with the enactment of Public Law 101 508, the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990, all employees are reportable for full FICA coverage with a few exceptions.

### **Group Life Insurance**

Employers covering their employees under the WRS may cover their employees under the group life insurance plan(s) provided by the Group Insurance Board and identified under Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

Some employers considering participation in the WRS for their non-covered employees may have previously elected to participate in the Wisconsin Public Employers' Group Life Insurance Program.

For example, school districts may have elected to have this coverage available to their teaching employees by virtue of their inclusion in the WRS.

In such situations, when the non-teaching employees become participants in the WRS, **they will also be eligible for** the group life insurance coverage after six calendar months of WRS coverage.

Any prior service credit elected will count toward the

six month WRS participation requirement.

More Group Life Insurance Program information is available on the ETF website at <a href="etf.wi.gov">etf.wi.gov</a> or by contacting ETF.

### **Group Health Insurance**

Employers covering their employees under the WRS may cover their employees for group health insurance purposes through the Wisconsin Public Employers' Group Health Insurance program. Retiring employees who receive a WRS annuity are also eligible for the Local Annuitant Health Program. More information is available on ETF's website or by contacting ETF.

### **Income Continuation Insurance**

Public employers included under the WRS are eligible to cover their employees under the Income Continuation Insurance Plan. More information is available on ETF's website or by contacting ETF.

### A RESOLUTION OF INCLUSION UNDER THE WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM

RESOLUTION				
RESOLVED, by the	Town E	Board	of the	
, . <b>,</b>	Governing Body per Wis. Stat.  Town of Souther		that pursua	ant
the Wisconsin Retire		n on the effective da	hereby determine to be included undented at $2017$ . This	
per Wis. Stat. §40 Number of eligible □ The above	0.21 (1), on the effective date employees: $\frac{23}{}$	and will recognize	current and future eligible employees 50 % of prior creditable service.  s of a public utility under Wis. Stat.	<b>;</b> ,
☐ The above named		e in the WRS only fo	or eligible employees hired on or after	r the
(7) (c), to 6	either elect or waive participa	ation in the WRS on	rrent employees, per Wis. Stat. §40.2 the effective date of this resolution ar of current, eligible employees:	
	e named entity resolves to ex 5) from participation per Wis.	• •	s of a public utility under Wis. Stat.	
CERTIFICATION				
	d by the above governing bo		nd complete copy of the Resolution d day of $\underline{Sept.}$ , and that said Resolution	•
		=	knowingly making false or fraudulent belief, the above information is true a	nd
IN WITNESS THERE Town of Southerr		4	eal of this governmental unit, county, Wisconsin on this the	
12th day	of September 2016			
Signature and Title of	Certifying Officer:			
Jane Doe		Clerk	Κ	
	Name		Title	
Employer Identificatio available:	on Number (EIN) if	69-036- 1234-00	00	



### Department of Employee Trust Funds P.O. Box 7931 Madison, WI 53707-7931

### **DESIGNATION OF AGENT**

Wis. Stat. § 40.03 (2) (j)

The following position is designated as the agent representing the employer in matters pertaining to the programs administered by the Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF). **Note: ETF retains the right to reject an employer's designee under authority of Wis. Stat. s. 40.03**. In the event the designated agent is unable to perform the duties of such position, ETF rejects the designee or the person indicated below as alternate agent shall be considered the agent until such time as the position designated as the agent is filled. We have also included room for the insurance and retirement contacts:

EMPLOYER IDENTIF	/ING NUMBER 69-036 -1234-000							
EMPLOYER LEGAL T	TLE Town of Southern, South County							
TITLE OF POSITION OF EMPLOYER AGENT Town Clerk								
NAME OF AG	ENT Jane E. Doe							
AGENT'S PHO	ONE NUMBER (615) 876-5432	EXT						
AGENT'S E-MAIL ADDRESS jedoe@tnsouth.net								
AGENT'S OFFICE HOURS 8 a.m. to 4 p.m.								
AGENT'S MAI	LING ADDRESS 241 West Street							
	P.O. Box 999							
	Southern, WI 55555							
EFFECTIVE D	ATE <u>01/01/2017</u>							
TITLE OF POSITION OF ALTERNATE AGENT Town Treasurer								
NAME OF ALT	ERNATE AGENT John A. North							
RETIREMENT CONTA	ACT							
PHONE NUM	BER	EXT						
INSURANCE CONTACT								
PHONE NUMBER EXT								
Designation Certified By:								
Date (MM/DD/CCYY) 09/12/2016	Signature and Title of Certifying Official  Jane E. Doe	Phone Number (615) 876-5432						

NOTE: For Departments of State Government only, the designation must be certified by the head of that agency.

Employer agents are responsible for subscribing to employer ETF E-mail Updates. The reverse side of this form contains further information.

ET-1313 (REV 4/2013) etf.wi.gov

### A RESOLUTION OF INCLUSION UNDER THE WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM

RESOLUTION		
RESOLVED, by the	of the	
•	Governing Body per Wis. Stat. § 40.02 (36)	
the Wisconsin Retire	.21 and 40.22 that the above named entity does hereby determine to be included ement System for participation on the effective date of January 1, This ed, is irrevocable after the November 15 preceding the effective date.	
per Wis. Stat. §40 Number of eligible	ed entity resolves to participate in the WRS for all current and future eligible emploace 0.21 (1), on the effective date and will recognize% of prior creditable service employees:	ice.
	e named entity resolves to exclude its employees of a public utility under Wis. St (5) from participation per Wis. Stat. §40.21 (7) (b).	at.
	ed entity resolves to participate in the WRS only for eligible employees hired on outhis resolution, per Wis. Stat. §40.21 (7).	r after the
(7) (c), to e will recogn	e named entity will provide a one-time offer to current employees, per Wis. Stat. either elect or waive participation in the WRS on the effective date of this resolutive% of prior creditable service. Number of current, eligible employees:	tion and
	e named entity resolves to exclude its employees of a public utility under Wis. St 5) from participation per Wis. Stat. §40.21 (7) (b).	.al.
CERTIFICATION		
	that the foregoing Resolution is a true, correct and complete copy of the Resolud by the above governing body on the day of, and that said Iffect.	-
	s. Stat. § 943.395 provides criminal penalties for knowingly making false or fraudeby certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the above information is	
IN WITNESS THERE	EOF, I have hereto set my hand and the official seal of this governmental unit,	
	in County, Wisconsin on this the	
day	y of	
Signature and Title of	f Certifying Officer:	
	Name Title	
Employer Identificatio available:	on Number (EIN) if 69-036-	



Department of Employee Trust Funds P.O. Box 7931 Madison, WI 53707-7931

### **DESIGNATION OF AGENT**

Wis. Stat. § 40.03 (2) (j)

The following position is designated as the agent representing the employer in matters pertaining to the programs administered by the Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF). **Note: ETF retains the right to reject an employer's designee under authority of Wis. Stat. s. 40.03**. In the event the designated agent is unable to perform the duties of such position, ETF rejects the designee or the person indicated below as alternate agent shall be considered the agent until such time as the position designated as the agent is filled. We have also included room for the insurance and retirement contacts:

NOTE: For Departments of State Government only, the designation must be certified by the head of that agency.

Employer agents are responsible for subscribing to employer ETF E-mail Updates. The reverse side of this form contains further information.

ET-1313 (REV 4/2013) etf.wi.gov

# PRIOR SERVICE COST STUDY

ETF Office Use Only	
BASIS FOR PRIOR	EFFECTIVE DATE
SERVICE	(MM/DD/CCYY)
%0	
25%	
20%	
%52	
100%	

EMPLOYEES ELIGIBLE FOR WRS	ETF Office Use Only	
PERSONNEL DATA SHEET	BASIS FOR PRIOR	EFFECTIVE DATE
	SERVICE	(MM/DD/CCYY)
	%0	
	25%	
Employeer Code if	20%	
Assigned Previously	75%	
69-036	100%	

**Employeer Name** 

TOTAL CRED. SERVICE							
POSITION TITLE (EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY)							
ESTIMATED ANNUAL EARNINGS							
HOURS WORKED PER YEAR**							
DATE EMPLOYMENT BEGAN*							
SEX							
DATE OF BIRTH							
SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER							
EMPLOYEE NAME							

Enter the date of hire. If employment was not continuous, indicate each actual net period of employment. The number of hours **expected** to be worked per calendar year (average).

ET-1321 (REV 07/2006))

### **Contact ETF**

### Visit us online at etf.wi.gov

Find Wisconsin Retirement System benefits information, forms and publications, benefit calculators, educational offerings, email and other online resources.

### Call us toll free at 1-877-533-5020 or 608-266-3285 (local Madison)

Benefit specialists are available 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (CST) Monday-Friday

Self-Service: Order forms and brochures, or change your address information 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Wisconsin Relay Service for hearing and speech impaired: 7-1-1 1-800-947-3529 (English), 1-800-833-7813 (Spanish)

### **Write or Return Forms**

P.O. Box 7931 Madison, WI 53707-7931

### **Visit by Appointment**

801 West Badger Road Madison, WI 53713 7:45 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.

